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Independent Auditors' Report
To the Members of Prerana Hospital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the standalone financial statements Prerana Hospital Limited ("the Company"),
which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the standalone statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and
standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and
loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the Standalone financial statements.
Other Information
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
necessary actions as required under the applicable laws and regulations.
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Independent Auditors' Report (continued)
Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)
• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I.

As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.
c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of ·such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B".
(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Not 28 to the standalone
financial statements.
ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which provision for material foreseeable losses is required under the applicable law or
accounting standards.
iii. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
iv. The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016 have not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the
financial year ended 31 March 2020.
(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under section 197(16):
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration
has been paid by the company to its directors during the current year. Hence, the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by
us.

for B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Baby Paul
Partner
Membership No: 218255
Unique Document Identification Number: 20218255AAAAAZ9646
Kochi
20 July 2020
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the
Company on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we report the following:

(i)

(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has a regular
programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed
assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size or the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c)

According, to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

(ii)

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stock and the book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

(iii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans to
the parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans or made investments, to parties covered under the register of sections 185 and 186 of
the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v)

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(vi)

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the
Act and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed amounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records.

(vii)

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Income Tax, Goods and Services tax, Cess
and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with the appropriate authorities. However there have been delays in depositing
amounts accrued in respect of Goods and Service tax ranging from 1 day to 21 days. As
explained to us the Company did not have any dues on account of excise duty.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident fund, Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
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(c)

According to information and explanation given to us, there are no material dues of Goods and
Service tax, Sales tax, Duty of customs, duty of excise, service tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of borrowings to banks. The Company did not have any outstanding loans or
borrowings from government and there are no dues to debenture holders during the year.

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans during the
year. Thus, the paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on the Company by its officers and
employees or fraud by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)

According to the information and explanation given to us and based in the examination of the records of
the company, the company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals by the provision of section 197 read with Schedule V of the ACT.

(xii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act.

(xiii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xv)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

for B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Baby Paul
Partner
Membership No: 218255
Unique Document Identification Number: 20218255AAAAAZ9646
Kochi
20 July 2020
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Ind AS financial statements of Prerana Hospital
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Referred to in paragraph (1 A (f)) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)
Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Prerana Hospital Limtied
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
“Guidance Note”).
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

for B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Baby Paul
Partner
Membership No: 218255
Unique Document Identification Number: 20218255AAAAAZ9646
Kochi
20 July 2020

Prerana Hospital Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)
Notes

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Financial assets
Investments
Other financial assets
Other non-current assets
Income tax assets (net)

4
4
5

647,759.54
104,193.57
432.76

661,382.91
61,490.89
633.80

6
7
8
27

10.00
2,345.69
15,302.52
69,987.52

10.00
1,999.70
786.75
53,448.47

840,031.60

779,752.52

9

7,424.67

7,039.45

10
11
12
7
8

56,162.58
30,270.42
205.23
5,062.02
5,193.31

44,942.82
9,414.69
163.10
9,738.48
5,831.42

Total current assets

104,318.23

77,129.96

TOTAL ASSETS

944,349.83

856,882.48

41,396.66
275,352.90

41,396.66
226,864.51

316,749.56

268,261.17

384,173.66
1,963.52
68,360.00

375,331.37
68,360.00

454,497.18

443,691.37

54,814.53

4,802.51

21,200.18
90,541.70
5,904.73
641.95

23,156.99
104,763.13
10,802.02
1,405.29

Total current liabilities

173,103.09

144,929.94

Total equity and liabilities

944,349.83

856,882.48

Total Non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Other current assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share capital
Other equity
Total equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Significant accounting policies

13

14
16
27

14
18

15
17
16

3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statement
As per our report of even date attached
for B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 116231W/ W-100024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Prerana Hospital Limited
CIN: U85110PN1996PLC104292

Baby Paul
Partner
Membership No.: 218255

Dr. U. B. Damale
Managing Director
DIN 00333654

Dr. S. M. Navare
Whole-time Director
DIN 00334421

Kochi
20 July 2020

Kolhapur
20 July 2020

Kolhapur
20 July 2020

Prerana Hospital Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

Notes
Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Purchases of medicines and consumables
Change in inventories
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit before tax
Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit for the year

Year ended
31 March 2020

19
20

720,615.37
1,865.37
722,480.74

717,452.35
57.26
717,509.61

21
22
23
24
25
26

158,263.48
(258.31)
165,207.22
45,178.97
25,221.71
277,935.46
671,548.53
50,932.21

173,234.45
493.18
142,795.57
46,618.71
25,473.11
283,405.60
672,020.62
45,488.99

27
27

679.87
50,252.34

45,488.99

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/ asset, net of tax effect

(1,763.95)
48,488.39

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per share (equity share of face value of Rs.10 each)

(131.59)
45,357.40

29

Basic
Diluted
Significant accounting policies

Year ended
31 March 2019

12.30
12.30

11.81
11.81

3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statement
As per our report of even date attached
for B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 116231W/ W-100024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Prerana Hospital Limited
CIN: U85110PN1996PLC104292

Baby Paul
Partner
Membership No.: 218255

Dr. U. B. Damale
Managing Director
DIN 00333654

Dr. S. M. Navare
Whole-time Director
DIN 00334421

Kochi

Kolhapur
20 July 2020

Kolhapur
20 July 2020

20 July 2020

Prerana Hospital Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Allowances for credit losses on financial assets
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Interest income
Finance costs
Liabilities no longer required written back
Operating profit before working capital changes
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase) in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets and other assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, provisions and other liabilities
Cash generated from/(used) in operating activities
Taxes paid, net of refund received
Net cash generated from/ (used) in operating activities (A)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities (B)
Cash flows from financing activities
Long term secured loans availed
Long term secured loans repaid
Short term unsecured loans availed
Finance charges paid (including interest capitalised)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Year ended
31 March 2019

50,932.21

45,488.99

25,221.71
10,477.67
(17.22)
(373.95)
45,178.97
(1,474.21)
129,945.18

25,473.11
1,618.87
(41.80)
(15.46)
46,618.71
119,142.42

(385.22)
(21,697.43)
4,926.45
(5,707.85)
107,081.14
(16,539.06)
90,542.08

512.69
(4,660.96)
1,203.66
22,108.57
138,306.38
(15,973.20)
122,333.17

(58,760.73)
39.70
373.95
(58,347.09)

(71,596.87)
41.80
15.46
(71,539.61)

35,400.00
(43,413.16)
50,012.02
(53,338.13)
(11,339.27)
20,855.73
9,414.69
30,270.42

71,283.53
(30,464.24)
(40,231.05)
(50,527.79)
(49,939.55)
854.02
8,560.67
9,414.69

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2020
Particulars
As at
Cash flows
1 April 2019
418,744.55
(8,013.17)
Non Current Borrowings
4,802.51
50,012.02
Current Borrowings
Total
423,547.06
41,998.85

Non cash changes
Acquisition
Foreign exchange
-

As at
31 March 2020
410,731.38
54,814.53
465,545.91

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2019
Particulars
As at
Cash flows
1 April 208
377,925.26
40,819.29
Non Current Borrowings
45,033.56
(40,231.05)
Current Borrowings
Total
422,958.82
588.24

Non cash changes
Acquisition
Foreign exchange
-

As at
31 March 2019
418,744.55
4,802.51
423,547.06

Refer note 11 - Cash and cash equivalents
The accompanying notes form an integral part these financial statement
As per our report of even date attached
for B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 116231W/ W-100024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Prerana Hospital Limited
CIN: U85110PN1996PLC104292

Baby Paul
Partner
Membership No.: 218255

Dr. U. B. Damale
Managing Director
DIN 00333654

Dr. S. M. Navare
Whole-time Director
DIN 00334421

Kochi
20 July 2020

Kolhapur
20 July 2020

Kolhapur
20 July 2020

Prerana Hospital Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

A. Equity share capital
Note
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued,subscribed and fully paidup
As at 31 March 2018
Changes in equity share capital during 2018-19
As at 31 March 2019
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 (Refer Note 13( a))
As at 31 March 2020

Equity shares
(in thousands)
3,250.00
889.67
4,139.67
4,139.67

13
13
13

Amount
32,500.00
8,896.66
41,396.66
41,396.66

B Other equity

Particulars

Balance as at 1 April 2018
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Transferred to retained earnings
Transactions with owners of the Company
Conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) to
equity shares (Refer note 13)
Dividend on Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
Conversion of financial liability to equity
Balance as at 31 March 2019
Balance as at 1 April 2019
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes
Total comprehensive income
Transferred to retained earnings
Transactions with owners of the Company
Balance as at 31 March 2020

Compulsorily
convertible
cumulative
preference shares
15,311.67
(15,311.67)

Reserves and Surplus
Securities
premium

Capital reserve

263,983.42
71,509.61

General reserve

170.54

255.00

-

-

Capital
redemption
reserve
3,000.00
-

Items of other
comprehensive
Total other equity
income
attributable to
Retained earnings
Remeasurement of
equity holders of
defined benefit
the Company
liability/ (asset), net
of tax
(154,389.87)
128,330.76
45,488.99
45,488.99
(131.59)

(131.59)
(131.59)
131.59

56,197.94

-

-

335,493.03
335,493.03

170.54
170.54

-

335,493.03

170.54

45,488.99
(131.59)
45,357.40
-

255.00
255.00

3,000.00
3,000.00

(1,574.23)
(1,447.36)
(112,054.06)
(112,054.06)

255.00

3,000.00

50,252.34
50,252.34
(1,763.95)
(63,565.68)

(1,763.95)
(1,763.95)
1,763.95
-

(1,574.23)
(1,447.36)
226,864.51
226,864.51
50,252.34
(1,763.95)
48,488.39
275,352.90
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B Other equity (continued)
The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:
(a) Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(b) Capital reserve and capital redemption reserve
Capital reserve and capital redemption reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(c ) General reserve
General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriate purposes.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statement
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Prerana Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1.

Company overview
Prerana Hospital Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 3 December 1996 as a private limited
company. The registered office of the Company is located at R. S. No 628, ‘B’ Ward, near Shastri Nagar
KMT Workshop, Kolhapur 416012. The Company was converted into a public limited company on
12 March 2001. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of running hospitals. The Company is
a subsidiary of Aster DM Healthcare Limited (‘the holding company’).

2.

Basis of preparation

A.

Statement of compliance
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act,
2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 20 July 2020.
Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in note 3.

B.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in thousands, except share data, unless otherwise
stated.

C.

D.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:
Items

Measurement basis

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

Fair value of plan assets less
present value of defined benefit
obligations

Use of estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.
Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the notes:
Note 31- lease classification
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2020 is included in the following notes:
Note 33 – measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Prerana Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

D. Use of estimates and judgements (continued)
Notes 28 – recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;
Note 35 – financial instruments.
F.

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. Significant valuation issues are reported to the
Company’s board of directors.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.
-

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:
G.

Note 35: financial instruments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
i. Standards issued but not effective on Balance sheet date:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.
H.

Going concern
The paid-up share capital and the accumulated losses of the Company as at 31 March 2020 were
Rs. 41,396.66 and Rs. 63,565.68 respectively.
Management however believes that the Company will be able to continue its operations on a going concern
basis and will meet all its liabilities as they fall due for payment in the foreseeable future atleast for the
period of twelve months from the date adoption of financial statements on the basis of financial support
from the holding company and based on business strategies and operating plans which will enable the
Company to generate operating cash flows in the future.
The financial statements have accordingly been prepared on a going concern basis.
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2.

Significant accounting policies
a.

Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any
Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost
of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown
under long-term loans and advances. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at each balance
sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
iii. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the
profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease term or useful lives of assets,
whichever is lower. Freehold land is not depreciated
The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Class of assets

Years

Buildings
60
Plant and machinery *
5
Medical equipments *
10
Vehicles *
5
Computer
3
Furniture and fittings *
5
Books*
5
Electrical equipments*
5
Office equipments*
5
* For the above mentioned classes of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above
best represent the useful lives of these assets based on internal assessment and supported by technical
advice, where necessary, which is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule
II of the Companies Act, 2013.
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b.

Intangible assets:
Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from
the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is included in amortisation in profit or loss.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Class of assets
Years
Software
3
Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if appropriate. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

c.

Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term
employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus,
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.
Post-employment benefits
(ii) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund
scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit
expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.
(iii) Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount.
The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit
liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in profit or loss.
(iv) Other long term employee benefits
The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related
assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation
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Employee benefits (continued)
using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
3.3

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for.
A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision
is made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

3.4

Revenue
Revenue from contract with customers
The Company generates revenue from rendering of medical and healthcare services, sale of medicines and
other operating avenues. Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaced IAS 18
Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when a customer
obtains control of the goods or services.
Disaggregation of revenue
The Company disaggregates revenue from hospital services (medical and healthcare services), sale of
medicines and other operating income. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of Company’s revenues and cash flows are affected by industry,
market and other economic factors.
Contract balances
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for sale of services as trade receivables,
advance consideration as advance from customers.
Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. The following details
provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts
with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.
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Revenue (continued)
a) Medical and healthcare services
The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services.
Revenue from hospital services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered
unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services rendered
to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date to the extent of the
services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts and concessions given to the patients.
Unbilled receivable represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the
patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the
balance sheet date.
b) Sale of medicines
Revenue from sale of medical consumables and medicines within the hospital premises is recognised when
property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customer
and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from
the sale of the goods and regarding its collection. The amount of revenue recognised is net of sales returns,
taxes and duties, wherever applicable.
c) Other operating income
The Company’s revenue from other operating income comprises of primarily of canteen sales (sales of
food and beverages).
Revenue from services rendered in based on the agreements/arrangements with the customers as the
service is performed. Income from sale of food and beverages is recognised at a point in time when control
of the assets is transferred.
Disaggregated revenue information: Refer note 19
3.5

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories comprises
purchase price, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. The Company uses the weighted average method to determine the cost of inventory
consisting of medicines and medical consumables.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable
values is made on an item-by-item basis.

3.6

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual
rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.7

Financial instruments
i) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortised cost, FVTPL or fair
value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI – equity
investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.
Financial assets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:
- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in
practice.
- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:
- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and
- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).
Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial
FVTPL

assets

at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial
assets
amortised cost

at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

Equity investments at
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
iii) Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
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Financial instruments (continued)
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.
If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.
Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.
The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.
iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
v) Derivative financial instruments
The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.
3.8

Impairment
i) Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.
Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
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Impairment (continued)
Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write off
ii) Impairment of non- financial assets
The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews
at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised
3.10 Leases
i. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At inception
or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required
by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of
their relative fair values.
ii.Assets held under leases
Lease of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the company substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance lease. The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to
the lower of their fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments.
Assets held under leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership (i.e. operating leases) are not recognised in the Balance Sheet.
iii. Lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight- line basis
over the term of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease.
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Leases (continued)
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
3.11 Recognition of dividend income , interest income or interest expense
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the right to receive payment is
established.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
the amortised cost of the financial liability.
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
3.12 Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
i. Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Minimum Alternative Tax
('MAT') under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the profit or loss.
The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws)
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.
ii. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets – unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date
and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related
tax benefit will be realised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
3.13 Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.
3.14 Earnings per share
The basic profit per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number
of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date.
In computing dilutive earning per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces
earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.
3.15 Cash-flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.
3.16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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4 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Particulars

Freehold land

Buildings

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture and
fixtures

Electrical
Fixtures

Plant and
machinery

Computers

Medical
equipments

Books

Total

Vehicles

Capital workin -progress
(B)

Gross carrying value
Balance at 1 April 2018
Additions
Deletions
Balance at 31 March 2019

333,000.00
333,000.00

240,120.05
240,120.05

11,383.72
11,383.72

62,566.38
759.30
(201.60)
63,124.08

46,871.01
229.75
47,100.76

65,089.04
3,683.63
(72.80)
68,699.87

9,021.56
1,663.18
10,684.74

242,672.00
19,033.10
261,705.10

83.94
231.88
315.81

2,024.94
(58.49)
1,966.45

Balance at 1 April 2019
Additions
Deletions
Balance at 31 March 2020

333,000.00
333,000.00

240,120.05
240,120.05

11,383.72
11,383.72

63,124.08
436.79
63,560.87

47,100.76
435.10
(204.99)
47,330.87

68,699.87
43.44
68,743.31

10,684.74
1,468.69
12,153.43

261,705.10
8,958.67
270,663.77

315.81
315.81

1,966.45
1,966.45

1,012,832.64
25,600.83
(332.89)
1,038,100.59
1,038,100.59
11,342.68
(204.99)
1,049,238.28

7,064.58
57,001.89
(2,575.57)
61,490.89
61,490.89
42,702.69
104,193.57

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2018
Depreciation
Deletions
Balance at 31 March 2019

-

35,713.63
4,002.00
39,715.63

2,633.59
3,351.35
5,984.93

59,700.21
371.31
(201.60)
59,869.92

46,173.30
106.68
46,279.97

63,900.36
244.31
(72.80)
64,071.87

8,013.48
824.51
8,837.99

134,689.94
15,876.79
150,566.73

83.94
5.88
89.82

966.00
393.29
(58.49)
1,300.80

Balance at 1 April 2019
Depreciation
Deletions
Balance at 31 March 2020

-

39,715.63
3,801.90
43,517.53

5,984.93
3,183.78
9,168.71

59,869.92
421.36
60,291.28

46,279.97
119.15
(182.51)
46,216.61

64,071.87
321.46
64,393.33

8,837.99
1,101.84
9,939.83

150,566.73
15,661.54
166,228.27

89.82
44.06
133.88

1,300.80
288.48
1,589.28

196,602.52
200,404.42

2,215.01
5,398.78

3,269.59
3,254.16

1,114.26
820.79

4,349.98
4,628.00

2,213.60
1,846.75

104,435.50
111,138.37

181.93
226.00

377.17
665.65

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2020
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2019

333,000.00
333,000.00

351,874.44
25,176.13
(332.89)
376,717.68
376,717.68
24,943.57
(182.51)
401,478.74
647,759.54
661,382.91

-

-

104,193.57
61,490.89

a) Plant and machinery includes asset taken under finance lease - gross block Rs Nil (previous year Rs 25,000) accumulated depreciation Rs. Nil (previous year Rs 10,722) and net block Rs. Nil (previous year Rs 14,271)
b) Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress includes borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with Ind AS 23 - Borrowing cost capitalised aggregating to Rs.8,390.26 (Previous year : Rs. 3,232.00) for the previous year.
c) For details of property, plant and equipment pledged, refer Note 14
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5 Intangibles assets
Software

Total

Gross carrying value
Balance at 1 April 2018
Additions
Balance at 31 March 2019

3,876.56
522.38
4,398.94

3,876.56
522.38
4,398.94

Balance at 1 April 2019
Additions
Balance at 31 March 2020

4,398.94
77.11
4,476.05

4,398.94
77.11
4,476.05

Balance at 1 April 2018
Amortisation for the year
Balance at 31 March 2019

3,468.16
296.98
3,765.14

3,468.16
296.98
3,765.13

Balance at 1 April 2019
Amortisation for the year
Balance at 31 March 2020

3,765.14
278.15
4,043.29

3,765.14
278.15
4,043.29

432.76
633.80

432.76
633.80

Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2020
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2019

Prerana Hospital Limited
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As at
31 March 2020
6 Investments (Non current)
Unquoted shares
at fair value through profit and loss
Janata Sahakari Bank Limited, Pune
(1,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
Aggregate book value of quoted and unquoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted and unquoted investments
7 Other financial assets
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue)
Total other financial assets
8 Other assets
Unsecured, considered good
Non-current
Advances for capital goods

Current
Prepaid expenses
Advances for supply of goods and services
Gratuity fund with Life Insurance Corporation of India (Refer note 33)
Total other assets
9 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Medicines medical consumables
Stores and spares
* for details of inventories pledged, refer note 14
10 Trade receivables
Current
Unsecured
considered good
considered doubtful

10.00

10.00

10.00

10.00

10.00
-

10.00
-

2,345.69
2,345.69

1,999.70
1,999.70

5,062.02
5,062.02
7,407.72

9,738.48
9,738.48
11,738.18

15,302.52
15,302.52

786.75
786.75

3,669.00
1,524.31
5,193.31
20,495.83

3,848.68
1,063.73
919.01
5,831.42
6,618.17

6,887.36
537.31
7,424.67

6,629.04
410.41
7,039.45

56,162.58
20,896.94
77,059.52

44,942.82
10,419.27
55,362.09

Allowances for expected credit loss
considered doubtful
(20,896.94)
Net trade receivables
56,162.58
For details of trade receivables pledged, refer Note 14
The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables and disclosed in Note 35
11 Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
- in current accounts
-in deposit accounts
Cash on hand
12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Deposits with banks held as margin money against guarantees

As at
31 March 2019

(10,419.27)
44,942.82

18,758.17
10,331.82
1,180.43
30,270.42

7,648.82
1,765.87
9,414.69

205.23
205.23

163.10
163.10
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13 Share capital

As at
31 March 2020
Number of shares
Amount
(in thousands)

Authorised
Equity shares of Rs 10 each
Compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs.10 each

As at
31 March 2019
Number of shares
Amount
(in thousands)

3,400
1,600

34,000.00
16,000.00

3,400
1,600

34,000.000
16,000.000

5,000

50,000.00

5,000

50,000.000

4,140

41.40

4,140

41.40

4,140

41.40

4,140

41.40

4,140
4,140

41,396.66
41,396.66

3,250
890
4,140

32,500.00
8,896.66
41,396.66

1,531,167

15,311.67

(1,531,167)

(15,311.67)

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of reporting period
a)

b)

Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
At the beginning of the year
Add: issued during the year
At the end of the year
Compulsory convertible preference share capital (CCPS) *
Preference shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up
At the beginning of the year

-

-

Conversion into equity shares
At the end of the year

4,140

41,396.66

4,140

41,396.66

*The Company has a single class of equity shares. All equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to
receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to shareholders' share of the paid-up equity
capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.
On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in
proportion to the number of equity shares held.
** The CCPS holder have the right to receive, in priority to the holders of any other class of shares in the capital of the Company, a cumulative preference dividend on the face value of
the CCPS, such dividend to be apportioned and paid up on the CCPS during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the preference dividend is paid. On a distribution
of capital in the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company or otherwise, the CCPS shall have a preferred right over such distribution in accordance with the
applicable law.
Each holder of a CCPS shall be entitled to convert the CCPS into equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up as per the terms mentioned in the agreement. The conversion price will be
adjusted based on future bonus issue, issuances arising from exercise of any stock options, share splits, consolidation, reorganization and other situations mentioned in the agreement.
The right to convert CCPS shall be exercisable by the holder at any time prior to the expiry of the CCPS term by delivering to the Company a notice in writing of its desire to convert
any CCPS, provided that such notice shall specify the number of CCPS that the holder desires to convert.
During the financial year 2014-15, the Company has issued 1,531,167 compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each to Aster DM Healthcare Limited, its parent company.
As per the terms of these instruments the same has been the classified as equity in financial statements. On 28 February 2019, these compulsory convertible preference shares have been
converted into 889,666 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in the Company.
(a)

Shares held by ultimate holding company/ holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates
As at
31 March 2020
Number of shares
Amount
(in thousands)

As at
31 March 2019
Number of shares
Amount
(in thousands)

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held by
Aster DM Healthcare Limited, India, the holding company
(b)

3,601

36,009.91

35,157.66

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at
31 March 2020
Number of shares
(in thousands)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid -up held by
Aster DM Healthcare Limited

(c)

3,516

3,601

As at
31 March 2019
%

Number of shares
(in thousands)
86.99%

3,516

%

84.93%

Details of buyback, bonus shares, issue for consideration other than for cash for past 5 years
The Company has not allotted any fully paid-up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares nor has there been any issue for consideration other
than for cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.
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14 Borrowings
Non-current
Term loans from banks - Secured (Refer note 1 and note 2)
Current
Secured loans from banks
Cash credit and overdraft (Refer note 4)
Amount included under 'other financial liabilities'
Total borrowings

As at
31 March 2019

384,173.66
384,173.66

375,331.37
375,331.37

54,814.53
54,814.53

4,802.51
4,802.51

26,557.72
465,545.91

43,413.18
423,547.06

Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are included in note 35
Note 1: Term loan from Yes Bank was availed and is repayable in 32 quarterly instalments starting from December 2016. The loan carries an interest of Yes Bank yearly MCLR
rate plus 1.50% per annum. The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on all current and movable fixed assets, both present and
future, corporate guarantee of Aster DM Healthcare Limited, the holding company.
Note 2: Term loan from Yes Bank was availed in April 2019 and is repayable in 36 quarterly instalment commencing after 8 quarters of moratorium period. The loan carries an
interest of Yes Bank's yearly MCLR rate plus 1.50% per annum. The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on all current and
movable fixed assets, both present and future, corporate guarantee of Aster DM Healthcare Limited, the holding company
Note 3: There are no defaults in repayment of principal or interest to lenders as at the balance sheet date.
Note 4: Cash credit and overdraft facility from banks are availed and carries and interest of Yes Bank's 3 months MCLR rate plus 1.25% per annum. The facility is secured by way
of an equitable mortgage of immovable assets, exclusive charge on all current and movable assets, both present and future, corporate guarantee of Aster DM Healthcare Limited, the
holding company.
A

The finance lease obligation are payable as follows:
The finance lease obligations are payable as follows:
The Company has taken medical equipment under finance lease. Future minimum lease payments under finance leases are as follows :
31 March 2020

Particulars

Present value
Future
Interest element
Future
of minimum
minimum lease of minimum
minimum lease
lease
payments
lease payments
payments
payments

31 March 2019
Interest element of
minimum lease
payments

Present value of
minimum lease
payments

Within less than one year
7,322.88
404.92
6,917.96
Between 1 and 5 years
After more than 5 years
Total
7,322.88
404.92
6,917.96
The Company has obtained medical equipment's on finance lease basis. The legal title of these items vests with the lessor. The lease term of such medical equipment's is 16 years
with the equated monthly payments beginning from the 13 month subsequent to the commencement of lease. The lease amount has been paid during the year.
15 Other financial liabilities
Current
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer Note 14)*
Current maturities of finance lease obligations (refer Note 14)
Accrued employee benefits / payable to staff
Dues to creditors for capital goods
Dues to other creditors
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security and other deposits
Dues to holding company (refer note 34)
Total other financial liabilities
* The details of interest rates. Repayment and other terms disclosed in note 14.
The company exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to the above financials liabilities is disclosed in note 35

26,557.72
24,293.09
7,422.96
17,576.92
4,175.00
2,894.98
7,621.05

36,495.22
6,917.96
20,341.63
5,935.71
23,195.97
3,943.90
3,968.62
3,964.12

90,541.70

104,763.13

Prerana Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)
As at
31 March 2020
16 Provisions
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 33)

1,963.52
1,963.52

As at
31 March 2019

-

Current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences (Refer note 33)

17 Other liabilities
Current
Contract liabilities (Advances received from customers)
Statutory dues payables

641.95
641.95

1,405.29
1,405.29

2,437.48
3,467.25
5,904.73

5,637.74
5,164.28
10,802.02

21,200.18
21,200.18

23,156.99
23,156.99

18 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act") based on the information available with the Company are
given below:
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of
the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in
view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
("The MSMED Act') is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year
The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end of the year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act

-

-

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the Act

-

-

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the Act

-

-
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Year ended
31 March 2020
19 Revenue from operations
Income from hospital services and medical services
Revenue from pharmacy
Revenue canteen and others

Year ended
31 March 2019

586,980.62
130,949.19
2,685.56
720,615.37

574,620.79
137,795.14
5,036.42
717,452.35

749,702.55

771,629.27

29,087.18

54,176.92

720,615.37

717,452.35

373.95
17.22
1,474.21
1,865.37

15.46
41.80
57.26

158,263.48
158,263.48

173,234.45
173,234.45

Reconciliation of revenue from hospital services with the contracted prices
Gross revenue
Less: discounts, disallowances etc
20 Other income
Interest income on bank deposits under the effective interest method
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Liabilities no longer required written back

21 Purchases of stock-in-trade
Medicines and consumables
22 Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Medicines and medical consumables:
Opening stock
Closing stock
23 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and allowances
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses
24 Finance cost
Interest
Others
25 Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 4)
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 5)
26 Other expenses
Professional fee paid to doctors
Food and beverage
Power, water and fuel
Rent
Insurance expenses
Repairs and maintenance:
- Buildings
- Others
Communication
Advertising and promotional expenses
Outsourcing charges - labs, minor procedures, etc
Rates and taxes
Legal, professional and other consultancy
Allowances for credit losses on financial assets
Travelling and conveyance
Consultancy fee paid
Miscellaneous expenses

6,629.04
6,887.36
(258.31)

7,122.22
6,629.04
493.18

149,133.03
10,840.18
5,234.00
165,207.22

127,498.01
9,593.85
5,703.71
142,795.57

41,524.95
3,654.02
45,178.97

43,111.62
3,507.09
46,618.71

24,943.57
278.15
25,221.71

25,176.13
296.98
25,473.11

154,169.52
11,732.19
23,207.77
3,141.81
1,279.33

149,184.25
12,339.18
22,230.59
2,313.76
1,298.37

1,251.13
40,292.01
1,447.07
14,021.91
6,482.63
1,953.61
4,671.71
10,477.67
1,371.90
2,435.19
277,935.46

3,737.67
38,343.30
1,647.35
8,179.57
6,964.28
8,011.82
7,252.34
1,618.87
1,073.35
16,871.08
2,339.82
283,405.60
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A. Income taxes
Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

Income tax assets/(liability)
Income tax assets
Current income tax liabilities
Net income tax assets/(liability) at the end

69,987.52
69,987.52

(i) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Year ended
31 March 2020
-

Current tax

As at
31 March 2019
53,448.47
53,448.47
Year ended
31 March 2019
-

(ii) Amount recognised in other comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 March 2020
Before tax
Tax (expense)/benefit
(2,443.82)
(679.87)
(2,443.82)
(679.87)

Re-measurement on defined benefit liability

(iii) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars
Loss before income taxes
Enacted tax rates in India
Tax expense /(asset)
Other temporary differences
Un-recognised deferred tax assets
Income tax expense
B. Recognised deferred tax assets and (liabilities)
(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the followings:
Particulars

Net of tax
(1,763.95)
(1,763.95)

Year ended
31 March 2020
50,252.34
27.82%
13,980.20
(30,527.96)
16,547.76
-

Year ended
31 March 2019
45,488.99
33.38%
15,184.22
(30,658.25)
15,474.03
-

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful debts and advances
5,813.53
3,478.37
Provision for employee benefits
858.46
469.14
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss
9,875.77
11,526.52
Total deferred tax asset
16,547.76
15,474.03
Deferred tax liabilities
68,360.00
68,360.00
On account of fair valuation land *
Excess of depreciation on fixed asset under Income Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation under Companies Act.
16,547.76
15,474.03
Total deferred tax liability
84,907.76
83,834.03
Deferred tax (liability) net
(68,360.00)
(68,360.00)
* The deferred tax liability arising on the fair valuation is recognised based on tax rates applicable to the long-term capital gains.
The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. Company has recognised deferred tax assets arising out of tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation) to the extent of net deferred tax
liability on account of taxable temporary differences.
(ii) Movement in temporary differences
Movement during the year ended 31 March 2019
Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Provision for employee benefits
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss
On account of fair valuation land
Excess of depreciation on fixed asset under Income Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation under
Companies Act.

As at
1 April 2018
2,719.32
648.07
6,637.28
(68,360.00)
(10,004.67)
(68,360.00)

Movement during the year ended 31 March 2020
Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Provision for employee benefits
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss
On account of fair valuation land *
Excess of depreciation on fixed asset under Income Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation under
Companies Act.

As at
1 April 2019
3,478.37
469.14
11,526.52
(68,360.00)
(15,474.03)

Recognised in
Profit and loss
759.05
148.76
4,889.24
(5,469.36)
327.69
Recognised in
Profit and loss
2,335.16
389.32
(1,650.75)
(1,073.73)

(68,360.00)
* The deferred tax liability arising on the fair valuation is recognised based on tax rates applicable to
the long-term capital gains.
(iii) Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Particulars

Tax losses (business loss)
Tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation)
Total deferred tax asset
(iv) Tax losses carried forward
Particulars
Brought forward losses - allowed to carry forward for specified period
Brought forward depreciation - allowed to carry forward for infinite period
Total deferred tax asset

-

As at
31 March 2020
Gross amount
Unrecognised tax
effect
53,413.48
14,859.63
263,476.34
73,299.12
316,889.82
88,158.75

As at
31 March 2020
109,035.43
263,476.34
372,511.77

Expiry date
Various dates
-

(327.69)
-

As at
31 March 2019
3,478.37
469.14
11,526.52
(68,360.00)
(15,474.03)

(327.69)

(68,360.00)

Recognise in OCI

Recognise in OCI
-

As at
31 March 2020
5,813.53
858.46
9,875.77
(68,360.00)
(16,547.76)
(68,360.00)

As at
31 March 2019
Gross amount
Unrecognised tax
effect
92,353.23
31,243.10
263,476.34
89,134.05
355,829.57
120,377.14

As at
31 March 2019
123,570.31
263,476.34
387,046.65

Expiry date
Various dates
-
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28 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars
Contingent liabilities
Medical claims against the Company
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advance) and not provided for

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

2,832.72

2,832.72

44,465.23
The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liability
where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position.
The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
On 28th February 2019, the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India has delivered a judgment clarifying the principles that need to be applied in determining the components of
salaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF) contributions need to be made by establishments. Basis this judgment, the Company has re-computed its liability
towards PF for the month of March 2020. In respect of the earlier periods/years, the Company has been legally advised that there are numerous interpretative challenges on
the application of the judgment retrospectively. Based on such legal advice, the management believes that it is impracticable at this stage to reliably measure the provision
required, if any, and accordingly, no provision has been made towards the same. Necessary adjustments, if any, will be made to the books as more clarity emerges on this
subject.
29 Earnings per share
A. Basic earnings per share
The calculation of earnings attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of basic (loss) per share
calculations are as follows:
i) Net profit attributable to equity share holders
Particulars
Net profit for the year attributable to equity share holders
ii) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic)
Particulars
Opening balance (refer note 13)
Convertible preference shares (Refer note 13)
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each for the year
Earning per share, basic

Year ended
31 March 2020
50,932.21

Year ended
31 March 2019
45,488.99

Year ended
31 March 2020
4,140.00
4,140.00
12.30

Year ended
31 March 2019
3,250.00
602.48
3,852.48
11.81

B. Diluted earning per share
The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive instruments as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. Hence, the Basic and Diluted EPS are the same.
30 Auditors’ remuneration (included under legal and professional charges, net of service tax)
Particulars
Statutory audit
Tax audit
Total

Year ended
31 March 2020
600.00
150.00
750.00

Year ended
31 March 2018
515.00
155.00
670.00

31 Operating leases
The Company is obligated under cancellable operating leases for its office premises which are renewable at the option of both the lessor and lessee. Total rental expenses
under such leases amounted to Rs 570.88 thousands (previous year: Rs. 404.50 thousands)
32 Segmental reporting
The Company is engaged in the business of rendering health care services, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to
make decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. Hence, there are no separate
reportable segments, as required by the Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segment”.
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A

Employee benefits
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (‘Gratuity Act’). Under the Gratuity Act, employee who has completed five years of service
is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement/termination age.
Based on an actuarial valuation, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:
Particulars
Defined benefit obligation liability
Plan assets
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability (Refer note 8 and 16)
Compensated absences*
Total employee benefit (asset)/ liability
*As at 31 March 2020, due to change in leave policy, the compensated absences are treated as short term commitments

B

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Particulars
Balance at beginning of the year
Benefit paid
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions
- changes in financial assumptions
- experience adjustments
Obligations at the end of the year
Reconciliation of present value of plan assets

Balance at beginning of the year at fair value
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid
Interest Income
Return on plan asset recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year
Net defined benefit liability
C

(i) Expenses recognised in the profit and loss account
Particulars
Current Service cost
Interest cost
Past service cost
Interest income
Net gratuity cost
(ii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation
Return on plan asset excluding interest income

D

Year ended
31 March 2019
22,959.77
23,878.77
(919.00)
1,405.29
486.29

Year ended
31 March 2020
22,959.77
(495.28)
2,633.13

Year ended
31 March 2019
19,437.60
(322.44)
2,328.06

1,440.74

1,288.70

(0.85)
686.97
1,803.86
29,028.32

409.98
(182.13)
22,959.77

As at
31 March 2020
23,878.77
1,916.64
(370.64)
1,593.87
46.15
27,064.80

As at
31 March 2019
19,660.69
3,054.30
(322.44)
1,389.96
96.26
23,878.77

1,963.52

(919.00)

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

2,633.13
1,440.74
(1,593.87)
2,479.99

2,328.06
1,288.70
(1,389.96)
2,226.80

2,489.97

227.85

(46.15)
2,443.82

(96.26)
131.59

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Plan asset
Plan asset comprises of the following:
Particulars
Insurance policy

E

Year ended
31 March 2020
29,028.33
27,064.81
1,963.52
641.95
2,605.47

Defined benefit obligation
i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
Particulars
Discount rate
Future salary growth
Attrition rate

27,064.80

Year ended
31 March 2020
6.25%
7.00%
30.00% p.a at
younger ages
reducing to
5.00% p.a% at
older ages

23,878.77

Year ended
31 March 2019
6.85%
7.00%
30.00% p.a at
younger ages
reducing to
5.00% p.a% at
older ages

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published statistics by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the government securities yield.
Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity plan.
(ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions holding other assumptions constant would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below:
Particulars
31 March 2020
31 March 2019
Increase
Decrease
Increase
Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement)
(575.04)
602.04
(454.56)
474.73
Future salary growth (0.5% movement)
593.36
(572.77)
471.59
(456.01)
Withdrawal rate (30% movement)
(146.70)
161.98
(111.60)
117.97
Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of the cash flows expected under the plan it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumption
shown.
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Related parties

A.

Related Party relationships
Names of related parties and description of relationship with the Company:

I) Enterprises where control exist
(a) Holding Company and ultimate Holding Company

Aster DM Healthcare Limited, India

II) Other related parties with whom the group had transactions during the year
(a) Key managerial personnel and relatives
Dr. U.B. Damale
Dr. S.M.Navare
Dr.Charusheela Damale
Dr.Sujata Navare
Moolakkadath Salahuddin
Azhumulathil Abdulrahiman Salim
Sreenath Pocha Reddy
Wilson Joseph Thadathil
Vikram Singh Beniwal

Managing director
Whole time director
Wife of managing director
Wife of whole time director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Director
Director
Director

B.

Related party transactions:
The Company has entered into the following transactions with related parties during the year ended 31 March 2020
Sl.No. Nature of transaction

1

2

3

C.

Managerial remuneration
Dr. U.B. Damale
Dr. S.M.Navare
Office in Place of Profit
Dr. U.B. Damale
Dr. S.M.Navare
Dr.Charusheela Damale
Dr.Sujata Navare
Aster DM Healthcare Limited
Consultancy fee
Corporate guarantee received
Guarantee commission paid
HRMS expenses allocation
Reimbursement of expenditure

Balance receivable / (payable) as at the year end
Sl.No. Particulars

1

2

Salaries and professional fee
Dr. U.B. Damale
Dr. S.M.Navare
Dr.Charusheela Damale
Dr.Sujata Navare
Other financial liabilities
Aster DM Healthcare Limited
Dues to Holding Company

Volume of transactions
Year ended
Year ended
31 March 2020
31 March 2019
3,600.00
600.00

1,200.00
600.00

1,834.40
8,004.16
2,807.24
779.57

1,562.27
7,280.47
3,166.31
759.57

471,907
2,612
684
359

16,871.08
630,127.55
2,464.81
-

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

(333.69)
(726.91)
(219.11)
(34.92)

(210.08)
(569.24)
(242.10)
(37.65)

(7,621.05)

(3.96)
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35 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.
As at 31 March 2020
Particulars
Assets
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Other financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
Total
Liabilities
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade payables
Borrowings including current maturities
Other financial liabilities
Total

Note

Financial assets at Mandatorily at
amortised cost
FVTPL

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Total carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

11
10
12
7

30,270.42
56,162.58
205.23
7,407.72

-

-

30,270.42
56,162.58
205.23
7,407.72

-

-

-

-

6

94,045.95

10.00
10.00

-

10.00
94,055.95

-

10.00
10.00

-

10.00
10.00

21,200.18
465,545.91
63,983.99
550,730.08

-

-

-

-

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

18
14
15

-

-

21,200.18
465,545.91
63,983.99
550,730.08

As at 31 March 2019
Particulars
Assets
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and Cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Other financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
Total
Liabilities
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade payables
Borrowings including current maturities
Other financial liabilities
Total

Note

Financial assets Mandatorily at
at amortised cost
FVTPL

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Total carrying
value

Total

11
10
12
7

9,414.69
44,942.82
163.10
11,738.18

-

-

9,414.69
44,942.82
163.10
11,738.18

-

-

-

-

6

66,258.79

10.00
10.00

-

10.00
66,268.79

-

10.00
10.00

-

10.00
10.00

18
14
15

-

-

23,156.99
423,547.06
61,349.95
508,054.00

23,156.99
423,547.06
61,349.95
508,054.00

-

-

-

-
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B Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
a) Credit Risk
b) Liquidity risk
c) Market risk
i)

Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.
The Company’s audit and risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit and risk management committee.

ii) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises
principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial
instruments.
Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals
for credit. The collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.
The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the past and the recent
collection trend. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs 56,162.58 (31 March 2019: Rs. 44,942.82)
and contract revenue amounting to Rs. 5,062.02 (31 March 2019 Rs. 9,738.48) . The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the
year was as follows:
Allowance for credit loss

As at
As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning
10,419.27
8,800.40
Impairment loss recognised/ reversed
10,477.67
1,618.87
Balance at the end
20,896.94
10,419.27
No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. There is no significant concentration of credit risk.
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in shares.
iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company believes that the working capital is
sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2020
Payable within 1 year More than 1 year
21,200.18
81,372.25
384,173.66
63,983.99
-

Total
21,200.18
465,545.91
63,983.99

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2019
Payable within 1 year More than 1 year
Particulars
Trade payables
23,156.99
Borrowings
48,215.69
375,331.37
Other financial liabilities
61,349.95
-

Total
23,156.99
423,547.06
61,349.95

Particulars
Trade payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities

iv) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices.
Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which transactions are denominated and the functional currency of the
Company. The functional currency of company is INR. There are no transactions made in foreign currency by the Company during the year.
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate on the
Company’s financial instruments is based on market rates. The Company monitors the movement in interest rates on an ongoing basis.
(a) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Financial liabilities (bank borrowings)
Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturities
Sensitivity
Particulars

1% increase in MCLR rate
1% decrease in MCLR rate
The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans from banks.

Impact on profit or (loss)
As at
As at
31 March 2020
31 March 2019
(4,107.31)
(4,166.29)
4,107.31
4,166.29

As at
As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
410,731.38
416,629.10

Impact on equity, net of tax
As at
As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(4,107.31)
(4,166.29)
4,107.31
4,166.29
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36 Capital management
The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management
monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio.
For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity reserves.
The capital structure as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 was as follows:
As at
31 March 2020
316,749.56
40%

As at
31 March 2019
268,261.17
39%

Long-term borrowings including current maturities*
Short-term borrowings
Total borrowings
As a percentage of total capital

410,731.38
54,814.53
465,545.91
60%

418,744.55
4,802.51
423,547.06
61%

Total capital (equity and borrowings)

782,295.46

691,808.23

Particulars
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
As a percentage of total capital

37 Derivatives and foreign currency exposures
The Company does not have any foreign currency receivable / payable as on the balance sheet date. Further, the Company did not import any goods during the year and did not have
any foreign currency expense during the year.
38 In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. This pandemic has resulted in disruption to regular business operations due to lockdown,
disruptions in transportation, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures imposed by the government. The Company has adopted measures to curb the
spread of infection in order to protect the health of its employees and ensure business continuity with minimal disruption. The Company believes that the COVID 19 pandemic will
only have a short term impact on its operations and after easing of the lockdown restrictions, the business is expected to return to normal. The Company has considered available
internal and external information while finalizing various estimates in relation to its financial statements upto the date of approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.
Further, the Company has taken various measures to reduce its fixed cost - for example, salary reductions, optimization of administrative costs. Accordingly, the Management believes
that the Company will not have any challenge in meeting its financial obligations for the next 12 months based on the financial position and liquidity as on the date of the balance sheet
and as on date of signing of these financial statements. The actual impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that which has been estimated, as the COVID -19
situation evolves in India and globally. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. However, the pandemic did not have any
material impact on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020.

39 Previous year figures have been regrouped /reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current year's presentation.
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